
CITY OF BELLEVUE 
YOUTH LINK BOARD 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
 
April 9, 2008 City Hall 
6:00-8:00 p.m. Room 1E-120 
 Bellevue, WA 
 
BOARDMEMBERS PRESENT:  Co-chair Brenda Gurung, Boardmembers Nancy O’Brien-
Abel1, Nazila Dabestani, Juan Hernandez, Faisal Jaswal2, Rachel Jiang, Farrah Khan, Brian Li, 
Lt. Dave Sellers3

 
BOARDMEMBERS ABSENT:  Co-chair Osbaldo Hernandez, Boardmembers Anne Jun, Mike 
Murphy 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Patrick Alina, Helena Stephens 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Dee Alfred, Rick Smith 
 
MINUTES TAKER:  Michelle Cash, Lakemont Business Services, Inc. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
The meeting was called to order by Co-chair Gurung at 6:02 p.m. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion by Boardmember Jiang and second by Boardmember Dabestani to approve the 
meeting agenda.  Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 
 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Motion by Boardmember Khan and second by Boardmember Jiang to approve the March 
26, 2008 Regular Meeting Minutes of the Youth Link Board as presented.   
 
Co-chair Gurung made the following corrections: 

Page 1, Approval of Minutes, the correction should read, “Ty Huynh Chhor” rather than 
“Tu Huynh Chhor.” 

 
At the question, motion carried unanimously (7-0).

                                                 
1 Arrived at 6:13 p.m. 
2 Arrived at 6:31 p.m. 
3 Departed at 7:34 p.m. 

1 of 7 



4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
None. 
 
 
5. BOARD COMMUNICATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
 

a. BYC Executive Committee Report
 
Mr. Alina reported on the following BYC activities: 

• The BYC recently discussed the priority list derived from the Youth Involvement 
Conference.  These priorities and other conference details will be discussed at the next 
BYC meeting. 

• The next service project will be held on Saturday, April 26 from 10:00 a.m. – 3:00 
p.m. at Highland Skate Park. 

• Mr. Alina will be attending the Altrusa International reception to receive the recently 
awarded grant for the Teen Closet program.  This mini-grant is for $500. 

• The planning committee has been meeting to discuss the CLA event.  CLA 
nominations will be accepted through May 12, 2008. 

 
There was a brief discussion regarding the Youth Involvement Conference Top Priorities List.  
Mr. Alina reported that BYC members felt security was the top concern among attendees.  
However, they also felt that security is also a personal responsibility.  Sidewalks were discussed 
as a major priority.  Boardmember Sellers is encouraged that youth members are taking on 
security concerns as a personal issue.  He added that the attitudes and awareness of security 
related concerns needs to be elevated.  Boardmember Sellers will act as a liaison with the board’s 
Youth Involvement Conference subcommittee.   
 
Mr. Alina will keep boardmembers informed on future BYC discussions regarding the YIC 
priorities. 
 
b. Staff Report 
 
Ms. Stephens reported on the following: 

• The Community Leadership Awards will be held on May 29, 2008, 7:00 p.m. at 
Meydenbauer Center.  Ms. Stephens encouraged all Boardmembers to attend.  In 
addition, graduating senior boardmembers will be asked to submit their bios for award 
consideration. 

• The organizers of the Seeds of Compassion is hosting a Compassion Forum on 
Sunday, April 13, 2008 at Fisher Pavilion in the Seattle Center.  The Dalai Lama is 
expected to make an appearance at the event.  Since Co-chair Gurung will be attending 
the event, Ms. Stephens asked her to provide an event recap at the next board meeting. 

• The YL Board approved Massive Movement had a great success at the recent Sonics’ 
game.  There were over 40 youth that participated and danced at the basketball game.  
Ms. Stephens will share pictures from this event at the next board meeting.   

2 of 7 



• The summer leadership camps with the YMCA’s PCAL and YBOYS programs are 
currently registering for their summer programs.  Anyone interested should contact the 
Bellevue YMCA. 

• There will be a City of Seattle 2008 Mayor’s Youth Town Hall held on May 3 from 
12:30-4:00 p.m. at the Seattle Center.  This is a great opportunity to observe other 
youth involvement activities.   

 
Co-chair Gurung requested that a card be circulated/sent to Mr. & Mrs. Grindeland to thank them 
for hosting the Gumbo Night event. 
 
 
6. UNFINISHED & NEW BUSINESS: 
 
None. 
 
 
7. ACTION ITEMS: 
 
None. 
 
 
8. STUDY SESSION ITEMS: 
 

a. New Poet’s Society 
 
Mr. Smith, author of A Sweeter Understanding and The Window Ledge won the prestigious silver 
medallion for the 2007 Bill Fisher Award for best first book.  In acknowledgement of the success 
from these books, he established the New Poet’s Society in January 2008, to encourage new 
writers to participate in their respective high school’s poetry contests, during poetry month of 
April.  The winners of each high school contest will be submitted to Mr. Smith’s attention and 
brought before a committee of selected poets and writers to compete against other school’s 
winners.  From this group, three winners will be announced.  In addition, a special overall winner 
will be chosen for the judge’s award.  Prizes will be awarded to assist the winner’s pursuit of 
continuing their education to become published writers.  Prizes will range from $400 to $1,200. 
 
This year’s award ceremony will be held on April 20, 2008 at Lake Washington High School, 
Cadle Theatre at 7:00 p.m.  All boardmembers are invited to attend the event. 
 
Mr. Smith was dismayed that Bellevue School District students could not participate in the event 
due to the WASL testing schedule.   
 
Mr. Smith questioned if there is an area within City Hall where the 2008 contest winner’s poems 
can be displayed.  He also asked for assistance with encouraging the Bellevue School District to 
allow students to participate in the program. 
 

3 of 7 



A 501(c) 3 will be established for next year’s program.  Mr. Smith clarified that all money raised 
benefits the students.  It is not applied toward administrative or other related expenses. 
 
Boardmember Jiang suggested Mr. Smith speak with the Creative Writing teacher and Creative 
Writing Club Founder, Mr. Ellis to discuss Newport High School opportunities.   
 

b. Bellevue 24-Hour Relay Update 
 
The 2008 Bellevue 24-Hour Relay Challenge will be held June 21 and 22, 2008.  There are six 
orientations, which will begin on April 29, 2008.   
 
Mr. Alfred reviewed some of the logistic changes from last year.  Some of these changes include: 

• Key locations with microphones/speakers for announcements. 
• Movie viewing with non-amplified surround sound to eliminate any noise concerns or 

issues. 
 
Mr. Alfred also reviewed some of the new activities, which include: 

• More adult size inflatables with longer hours. 
• Laser show in the evening. 
• Additional festive lightings in the Downtown Park. 
• Required lap minimum for community service hours. 
• Chaperone Café for chaperone respite. 
• Theme activities throughout the event. 
• Snow fencing will be used throughout the Park for safety. 
• New logo has been designed to reflect the 10th Anniversary. 
• Invitational videos are being completed for the Oprah Winfrey and Ellen DeGeneres 

shows. 
 
The sponsors for the event were also discussed. 
 
Ms. Stephens explained that if an evacuation needs to be made during the event, there is an 
agreement with Bellevue Square so participants can evacuate to the parking garage at Bellevue 
Square.  She added that there will be a rotating theme and people will be encouraged to bring 
decorations that match the themes.   
 
Mr. Smith suggested inviting the Police and Fire Departments to have a basketball competition 
as an entertainment feature. 
 

c. Action Teams’ Goals & Youth Link Board 
 
Boardmember Jaswal volunteered to work on Goal #5 (evaluate the Bellevue Youth Link 
program to create a strategic road map). 
 
Boardmember Jiang reported that the committee for Goal #2 (conduct a needs assessment that 
will result in concrete activities to foster environmental stewardship) developed a sample survey 
to be distributed on Earth Day.  This survey was passed out to Boardmembers for their review.   

4 of 7 



 
Ms. Stephens suggested that the committee members contact the school district to see if there is a 
team that is concentrating their efforts on environmental stewardship within the district.   
 
Boardmember Jaswal suggested conducting the survey online (i.e. SurveyMonkey).  There was a 
general discussion on the advantages of using an online surveys versus paper.  It was suggested 
to link the survey to the Youth Link website.   
 
Boardmember Khan suggested working with teachers to allow extra credit/points for completing 
the survey.   
 
Boardmember Gurung suggested conducting a sample survey (i.e. Newport High School) by 
offering online and paper surveys to determine the preferred survey method. 
 
There was a brief discussion regarding Facebook or other online discussion mechanisms.  Ms. 
Stephens clarified that these sites are not approved by the City of Bellevue.   
 
There was a brief discussion regarding the current school recycling programs.  
 
Boardmember O’Brien-Abel made the following corrections to the Earth Day survey: 

• Question #1, second part, should read:  “If you drive, is there someone living close to you 
that you would carpool to school with?” 

• Question #2, should read:  “If you buy lunch, would you buy lunch if the lunch trays 
were not made of Styrofoam but of something reusable like plastic?” 

 
Boardmember Sellers will speak with his Bellevue School District contacts to determine the best 
approach for the schools.  Ms. Stephens will also speak with her contacts as well as update 
Boardmember Murphy. 
 
Ms. Stephens would like to be informed when subcommittee meetings are held. 
 
Boardmember Juan Hernandez reported that the subcommittee working on Goal #5 (evaluate the 
Bellevue Youth Link program to create a strategic road map) determined a third party should be 
included in the evaluation process.  Ms. Stephens explained that there are funds available for the 
evaluation process.  She added that there was an initial evaluation conducted in 1990 and then 
another one conducted in 1999.  Ms. Stephens explained the process for hiring a consultant, 
which would include a RFP.  Boardmember Juan Hernandez suggested determining an 
agreement for success indicators or key attributes for the RFP process.  Boardmember Jaswal 
suggested this type of evaluation be conducted every 9-10 years.   
 
Boardmember Juan Hernandez noted that the subcommittee hopes a flow chart can be developed 
to demonstrate how to move from the mission to a specific project and measure the 
accomplishments. 
 
This committee will meet just before the next board meeting.   
 

5 of 7 



d. Youth Involvement Conference priorities 
 
When discussing Goal #4 (determine priority projects out of the 2008 Youth Involvement 
Conference), Boardmember Jiang reported that the BYC felt the following Education items 
should be a top priority: 

3 – Better counseling for students 
4 – More tutorials at schools 
9 – More homework help centers 
10 – More college prep classes and college life courses 

 
Ms. Stephens explained the evolution of the YIC.  She noted that there is a priority list generated 
after each conference.  Conferences are held ever other year.  Usually, the top ten priorities 
derived from the conference are provided to City Council.  Ms. Stephens added that sometimes 
the top ten priorities make a great deal of sense, while other times the top ten priorities cannot be 
accomplished within a two year time period.  Ms. Stephens provided examples of some of the 
identified priorities that have been accomplished. 
 
Ms. Stephens suggested that boardmembers review the 2008 Youth Link – Youth Involvement 
Top Priorities list to determine if there are some priorities that can be grouped together.   
 
Overall, boardmembers thought it was a bit premature to discuss the priority list since the BYC 
has not had adequate time to properly digest the list. 
 
Ms. Stephens suggested inviting specific resources to address the identified concerns on the 
priority list (i.e. invite Safety resources to address the identified safety concerns; foster 
relationships between King County Health and the School District to address some of the health 
related concerns, etc.).  She added that further education needs to occur to inform youth 
community members about available resources.  Boardmember O’Brien-Abel suggested the YL 
website contain links with all of the available resources.   
 
Co-chair Gurung feels that the Safety concerns identified on the YIC Priority List are so 
significant that these should all be addressed regardless of whether or not they fall into the top 
ten priority list. 
 
There was general consensus to postpone the 2008 Youth Link – Youth Involvement Top 
Priority discussions until the BYC has provided their feedback on their priority viewpoints.  In 
the meantime, Ms. Stephens will add the current available resources to the Top Priorities list. 
 
 

6 of 7 



9. OTHER COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
Boardmember Juan Hernandez invited Boardmembers to join Hopelink on May 10, 2008 for the 
National Association of Letter Carriers Food Drive.  This is the largest one-day food drive in the 
nation.  Volunteers are needed to collect food from the post offices.  Ms. Stephens will forward 
further information about the event to Boardmembers. 
 
In addition, Boardmember Juan Hernandez invited Boardmembers to tour Hopelink if they are 
interested.  Boardmembers should contact Boardmember Juan Hernandez if they would like 
further information. 
 
Boardmember Jaswal reported that Bellevue Community College is working on providing a 
webcast of the Compassion Forum and the Dalai Lama’s presentation.  If the webcast is secured, 
all Boardmembers are welcome to participate.   
 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Motion by Boardmember Jiang and second by Boardmember O’Brien-Abel to adjourn the 
meeting at 8:01 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously (8-0). 

7 of 7 


